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Washington, DC 20510 

Dear Chairmen and Ranking Members: 

U.S. Department of Justice 

Office of Legislative Affairs 

Washington, D.C. 20530 

July 17,2020 

The Honorable Marco Rubio 
Acting Chairman 
Select Committee on Intelligence 
United States Senate 
Washington, DC 20510 

The Honorable Mark Warner 
Ranking Member 
Select Committee on Intelligence 
United States Senate 
Washington, DC 20510 

We write in further regard to matters pertaining to the Foreign Intelligence Surveillance 
Act (FISA) and other matters contained in the December 9, 2019 report by Department of Justice 
(Department) Inspector General Michael Horowitz. 

As we described in our letter of February 7, 2020, the Attorney General has determined 
that it is now in the public interest to release to Congress additional documents and information 
related to these matters to the extent consistent with national security interests and with the 
January 7, 2020 order of the Foreign Intelligence Surveillance Court (FISC). We began to 
provide such documents to you on February 7. A twelfth production is enclosed herein, Bates 
numbered SENA TE-FISA2020-00 1106 to SENATE-FISA2020-001167. This submission 
contains a February 9, 2017 Electronic Communication and an annotated New York Times news 
article. The attached production is unclassified in its current format. 

Pursuant to longstanding Department policy, the Department has made redactions 
relating to certain personally identifiable information or to ongoing investigations, enforcement 
activities, and certain law enforcement operations, methods, or techniques. 

Today 's submission, along with forthcoming productions of additional documents, is 
based on extraordinary and unique circumstances, and should not be construed as precedent 
setting in any regard. The production of these materials does not waive any applicable 
privilege. 
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We hope this information is helpful. Please do not hesitate to contact this office if we 
may provide additional assistance regarding this or any other matter. 
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Electronic Communication 

Title: _ Interview of Primary Subsource 
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Approved By: 

Drafted By : 
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~ffer Agree~d by Primary Subsource 
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Primary Subsource 

_ During the cour SE- o f three days , Primary Subsource 

was interviewed in the FBI ' s Wa s hingt on ' s Fie ld o ffi c e IWFO) by FBI 

per sonnel al ong with atto rneys fr om the US Department o f Jus ti c e , 

Natio nal Security Divi s i o n . ~ 'lia s accompaniej by hi s att (J rne~· 
~ 

Primary Subsource' Attorney Belo w i s a conso lidate j w r ite-u~, o f the 

three days o f interv iews . 

24 January 2017 (1330 - 1700) 

FBI Washington Field Office Interview Room 

Present : 

Primary Subsource interv ie\>lee 

Primary Subsource's interviewee ' s att o rne; 

FBI Agent , FBI Sj:,e c ia l ."gent • 

FBI SIA FBI Supervi so ry Intelligenc e .ll,na l y s t • 

, Chief , Nati onal Se c urity Divi s i on, US De~l artment of 

Justice 

I. Primary 
Subsource 

Background 

IU / / FOUO) ~ '''a s b o rn 
~ 

He describes hi s famil y 

Cit y _ o n 

h incl uded 

, ~ completed his h i gh s c hool 
~ 

s r.,r o bably tie,] 
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Primary Subsource 

Re : 

to the fact high schoo l years , 

and l,.;a s a IE- c' an 

he attended a high 

some 1,.;eel: s in 

(U // FOUO) Fo r university , ~ attended 
~ 

, at which time he grajuated 

) , 

traveled 

se rved as 

o f Congress , and during 

he a ssis ted and tran?lej ·!lit h the jelegati ()n _ an·] 

o ther cit ies in the 

(U / / FOUO) Primary desire had a l ways been t o ob tain a graduate 

degree in the United States . He applied t o a number o f schools , and 

received the be s t - an:! one o f the onl y - o ffer s fr om the 

didn ' t involve 

it just happenej that 

the schoo l gave him a full fe llowsh ip studies in 

from sta y an ,j 

, with the hope o f getting his Ph . D. He 

eventually wa s acceptej no t t o a , but t e, 

3 
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Re : 
of 

, O:/O fo / 20 

Primary Subsource 

on research projects f o r 

in tilE ~ebri~fi;lq, 

We indicat-=d thar 1v''7' 

had, and that it Io/as our undcrstandi:lg that h'=" had d2n~ that h'C' l"k h'it]; 

".' con firmf5-d [ha t . } 

(U I/ FOUO) _ explained that he soon hit a glass ceiling at 

_ because of his 

time , he 

ci rc1illll , stayed 

t o try his han·j at 

For a time , he did vari ous analyti c al ~,ieces on 

'''ith . In time , some o f the warl: moved into the 

area o f due diligence and business intelligence . _ says that he 

saw opportunitie s t o use his existing netwo r~: o f friends and cGlleagues 

he 

he served as tilE 

he directej o thers 

in doing business intelligence on various t opics/sub-regi ons, inclu,jing 

. He helped analysts under him figure 

out how t o best handle assignments and tall: to clients . He als (1 put 

t ogether ll Jeekly , bi- 1.oJeekly and monthl~' reI=.o rts . ~ '"I (Hted f ') l" 
~ 

4 
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Re : 

_ through the 

went bankrupt and 

, O:/OS>/ _ ) 

which time _ parent comr:.any 

(V II FOVO) _ described his travel t o .. uI" through the . 

period as spo radic and perso nal . a trip back t o during 

• in o rder t o do Iesearch f o r his rest o f 

his trips _ during this .time - 'lih i ch he said too k place every 

II years or s o - ',Iere c entered on an·j 

celebrating New Year ' s . 

II . 
I'l lIlld l \ suh , 'lUI! I' Early Relationship and Eventual Employment with 

Christopher Steele and Orbis Business Intelligence 

(v II FOVO) Christopher Steele [hereafter Steele] in 

the 

Vlith Steele ' s 

end o f his tenure at invo lve,j with helping 

_ t o try and find nelll employ'Tnent 0 PI=,o Itunitie s . _ f ound out 

that Steele was setting up a new business , Orbis , and that he was 0 11 

the l c,o ko ut f o r analyti c al help . _ suggesteJ that _ might 

consider loo ~:in g at Orbis , and helped t o bro l:er an email introdu c ti o n 

to Steele . Acco rding t o _ this vIas j LIst o ne o f the companies 

_ helped t o broker introduc ti ons . 

met in person with Steele at a Starbllc~:s in 

an h o ur in the c0 ffee shup , and then 

went t o Steele ' s ho tel , where they s at and tall:ed f o r abo ut 31) minutes . 

_ said that they rea lly ji.jn ' t tall: in-del:·th abo ut 

bacl:gro und, but rather diSCUSSed ba s i c biograr:,hical 

5 
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Primary Subsourc 

inf ormati o n , his contacts / netw0 r}: , anj hi s c,)nne c tions ira. I'l el I/ l('!:}: 

wa s o ffered at this time , but Steele said that "If we [Orbis] get a 

project , we ' ll get in t o uch . " 

(U II FOUO) In circa , Steele contacted _ 

and as}:ed that he fulfill a projec t - an open sourCe analys i s o f ~hat 

thought were three o f the best sectors o f l ow-ris}: invEstment 

. _ ',]ro te a fEI"; pages , high 19l1t111g 1'isl: 5 and 

opportunities , and submitted them t o Steele . ~n ' t 

sure at this time what Orbis ' primar~' f oc us wa s - he ~ sai·j 

that it was no t clear if it wa s about ,jUE d i l igenc E and business 

intelligence . For the short risk assessment repc.rt , _ l,.;a5 I=,aid 

a few hundred do llars , ,jirect-depos itej int0 hi s account . He saij he 

was very apr:.rec iati \'e (If thi S , because he jidn't rea11:i hav e an inC(lme 

at this time . 

(U II FOUO) Later in . , Steele t old him that he ha ,j read ani lil:e.] hl S 

risl: assessment an~ wa s ~ 0~ma!:y brought on board with Orbi s . 

He signed a confi ·jentia l ity agreement, which he jijn ' t thin~: twi ce 

about signing because it wa s fairly standarj - he compared it t o the 

types of par:.ePdo rk he signed at _ , incluji ng se:·:ual harassment 

po licy , etc . All contact with Steele was being jone at this time via 

email andSkype . 1IIIiIIII s igned the confijentiality agreement , 

scanned it , and sent it bac!: t o Steele 'cia email. 1IIIIIIII di ,j not 

s ign a "no n-compete" agreement with Orbi s , and h~ jescribe·j hi s w(' r~: 

'"rith Orbis initial l~' as '. l"ror}: " anj '. pro jec t s " as he ',]as s till 

with . Orb i s wa s just part 0 ~ his overall p(.rtfol i o at this 

time . 

(U II FOUO) Initially , hi s 1...,011: '/J ith Orbis 'lia s in the o l='e n S0ur c e sphere . 
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HE did not have any 'Jisibility into Orb i s ' end clients . _ 

commented that .jur ing his time ' .... ith Orbis , he has always been tr yi ng te. 

understand t ilE tangible resu lts o f his worJ: - 1)11111.11\ ::->U!I'>, )lH('t~ attor ney 

added that his c lient , "never asJ:ed , and was never t old [abollt final 

cl ient s ] . n The project requirement s were always J:e~.t vague with fe~ 

concrete parameter s - e . g . "Can you do some checJ:ing on this?" Also , 

initially with Orbis , his sale contac t ~a s with Steele . He wa s in ema i l 

and Skype communication with Steele and t,.las informa lly introducej te. 

o ther Orbis employees during Sl:ype ca ll s , but _ ;;as never flo,ln 

o ut to the UK to meet ;;ith Steele and the Orbis team . 

(U// FOUOI In . , _ had hi s first Orbis-financed tri _ 

. His s pecific projec t involved inquires about a ~ 

[I/,hiC_ did not name] an·d the c(,rnpany ' s Ql,,,mer , '.oJhich 

he describe,j as a f o rmer Russ ian se nat ·~ r and Duma deputy . It was a jue 

diligence assignment , and he l .... as meant to look f or company / management 

linl:s t o o rgani=ed crime and Russ ia ' s regional and federal power 

structures . For this , he was wired 53 , 000 . He usej $1 , 50 1) t o r·urchase a 

r ound-trip ti c ket , and 51 , 51)0 to cove r e:·:pense s for the trip . He use·j 

his existing contacts and daisy-chaine,j from them t o try to identify 

o thers 1tlith relevant info rmati on . For e:.:amPle ,_ e:·:[..·laine::i , he 

' .... 0uld use pre-e:..:isting contac t s to find ou t if anyune he J:ne'N hal 

wo rked in public relations or advertising f o r a 

_ did no t pa:l anyone for inforrnati Gn , and repol" ted back to 

Steele verbally either v ia Skype o r in-r,ers,)n in Lundon . 

(U//FOUO) traveled f or the 

his life both a personal trip an ,j a 

business trip . Orbis paid f or the trip , anj during his time in the UK , 

_ met Steele - "for the sE-cunj 0 r third time in my life" - anj 

7 
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als o introduced t o o ther Orbis emplo yees , inclLding and 

, abo ut '"hom _ described a s an analyst 'Ilh \"., ha:i 

graduated fr om an English uniVe r si ty . _ described the time 1,1ith 

Orbi s a s "general meetings , [pit ch ing] p o tential !:,r 0 jects , anj 

disCllssing general rumors about Putin and ?utin ' s new thir ,j term as 

pre s i de nt. There was tal~: about what tilE "biggest rumo rs" or tile 

I'biggest compr omiSing inf o" regar ,j ing the Ru ss ian government ~a s . 

(U II FOUO) _ could no t reme mber e:·:actly '.hen he had fir s t 

learned that Steele . He thought it was arou nj :01: 1) [ 

:013 . He couldn ' t remember if some o ne t o ld him that fact , s(,me o ne 

rnenti c!l1ed it , o r if it was just l' cammCI l) kno 'llledge" that he had i=,ict:ed 

up ove l: time . [AN.-=\L l"ST NOTE : In dis :ussi:l g his k n(livl-:-,jq~ _" f St-:-o?17' 5 

didn ' t reall}" car~ t 2 k;1 0 W su~~: ti]i:lqS and !Ia~t~~ t 2 \\ s tal- 0Ut : f tj~~ 

qovt?rnm~nt ' s bus ine- ss " - t o IIhi:h h i s att or ney sa i d , \\ r~le-ll, Y0 U hdF-:-n ' t 

don.:- a ve-ry go od jeL; ~f that . "] 

(U/I FOUO) _ continued t ,) ',lor k 0 n a number wI pruj e:c ts : (.' 1' Orbis 

o n all kinds o f s ubjec t s , including Ru ss ian leadersh ip, banking , and 

the . He w0ul,j prov i ·je reports eve ry mo nth o r every 

o ther mo nth. 

(U II FOUO I Thro ugh _ , 

contractual relati o n s hip , an ,j 

t (J get a 5ecu t-i ty clearan ce and set uf ' his 

0 'lIn bus iness . Ho t,leVEr , ',lith the . ban}:rupt cy 

parent c ompan y - and the subsequent c l os ing o f 

iSlA 

SIA 

SIA _ f o und himself , in a iiff i cul t s ituat i (J . ne 
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needed an entity to 

couldn ' t do it [as 

the 

Primary S ubsourc 

- anJ as Orbis 

saii 

that they coulJ only he p him o ut if he ha"d a s.ource o f income . . o,t that 

pOint , _ intr.oJucei Steele and 

arrangement was set up between Orbi s and 

served as 

a m.onthly salary f .o r his w.or k 

empl.oyee (, f 

. Out o f the 

'Nas the only one - a s far as he knOl,ol S - 1,olh o ',la s lNorkin9 

solely f o r Orb i s , and _ believ e s that 0 nly _ l:no ',ls (, f 

his wa r}: f or Orbis . Prior t o thi s arrangement , the only pa~,erwo r}: tie 

between _ and Ol"bi s 'lias thro ugh the banl:ing h ·Ji!.' e tran s a c ti ':J n s , 

but after thiS , the only regular paper~0 rl: tie would be between 

_ and 

Jeductions , 

also gave- a fiqur7 

_ cha rgE- s Orbi s f or 1 '11111 .1 1\ .... '1 ·' • dil l I 

mak:~s fr om 

said that he receive·j after 

[;,NMl'ST NCTE : _ 

tut i s :l Ct ~l~a r jl ~t~ mu~ 

directly , give assignment s ani direct tra,,:el . 

III ~O'~lLc~es and Procedures While Traveling Abroad for 

Contacts with Russian Intelligence and Security 

Services 

(U // FOUO) _ 'Nas a s ked h.ow he " covers" his qu e rie s 'Nith hi s 

ou t 
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Primary Subsourc 

sources . He typically tell s hi s sources that he i s worl:ing on a 

research pr o ject o r an analytical i.=,ru juc t . He wa s als(1 aske·:l if there 

were friends , as soc iatEs and /o r sourc es who l:new that he wa s co llec ting 

info rmati on f o r Orbi s . He s aid \'~'e s and no , " and eXI=,lained that s(,me of 

11i s c l oser frienjs understand that he works in tile area o f iLle 

diligence and business intel l i gence . t-lany o f them think that he i s 

, the SIA 

SIA 

They don ' t l:now that he wor}: s f o r Orbis , as he s igned a non-di sclosure 

agreement and t o ld no t to tall: about tilE company . He has never 

menti Dned Chris Steele Dr Orb i s t o his friends anj assDc iates . He 

emphasi3ed that · you [t he FBI] are the first people he ' s t o ld ." 

IU // FOUOI f Jllln,U \ Sut' ·(llill " was a s }:ed if he tal:es no te s on the info rmati on he 

i s col lec ting fr om his sou r c~ s , '~ r if 11E ~:ee~'s any J:inj o f rece. rjs . He 

wa s t old by Steele that it i s a securit y risJ: t o ta J: e no tes ; he ll asn ' t 

J:ept no te s o r electronic re co r ds . He occasi 0nall y maJ:es scr ibb le s 

and /o r c hicJ:en sc rat ch nt.., t es here and the re , but gi ves verbal ·:ie-briefs 

in f ol l Dwing his trips _ . ,lllt ogether , ,lith SIA , 

reporting , he had three trips 

- I 

IU / / FOUO) _ had no communi cat i ons >lith Steele ',Ihile _. 

He wa s alway~ advised by Stee le that they were n(· t t o have 

communicati ons , or t o minimi=e corrununi cat i ons , sav ing them f or on ly 

emergency o r urgent matter s . 
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;Pnmary Subsource 

Re : i) : /O ~ / 

(U// FOUO) During the conversa ti on about Source 1 

_ ',las asked if Orbis had ever as.:ed him t o bro ker direct 

contact with o ne of sources , or ~hether Orbi s wa s 

and the compa ny 

intermediary between the sources 

tl1at Orbis has always I:e~' t him 

as the intermediary . 

(U / / FOUO) _ indicated that , t o his ):nO'"ledge, he has nu t had 

any contacts with the Russian intelligenc E v r security services . [ .-1!.J.."iLY 

ST NOTE : His att orl1-=Y ~mpha 5 i=ed " to h i s kn o ld.::-dg7" durin.;; thi s part ~""'f 

thE- dis c ussi on . 

government as he said , il1 the 

- but he jeniei any contact - again , "a s far a - he 

anyo ne in the SVR , GPU o r FSB . 

IV . Pnmarj Subsource Initial US Election-Related Assignments for Orbis 

(U // FOUO) Around March : I) lf , and Chri s Steele had a v(lice 

c onversation during l..Jhich time Steele a s ked _ t o s ee villat he 

could find out abou t Paul Nanafo rt , including hi s 

reputation in the United States , his connec ti ons t o the Yanu.:ov i c h 

regime in Ukraine , an.j any co rrupti on ties . He related some o f Steele ' s 

c o llection-related questi ons - "Do you J:now [about] Manaf o rt? Finj (.ut 

about Manafort ' s dealings with UI:raine , his dealings with other 

c ountries , and any c0rru~lt scheme s [ t CI whic l) Manaf ci rt is connec ted] " 

_ said that he was " clueless" about 'Nh0 Hanaf t) rt lNas , anj that 

this was a I' s trange tas.:" t o have been given . It was s trange be caus e 

_ had no t .ja ne US-related pro ject s f o r Orbis bef0re l and he '''as 

a bit unc omf0 rtable ltJv rking o n a t O~l i c dealing I,li th 

Steele did not give him a tightjea ,jline on thi s assignment . At thi s 
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Primary Subsource 

Re : 

salar}' with Orbi£ tll[ Ougll I an:i f,01nt , _ was ,:on 

there was no difference in financial remuneration f o r t llis assignment . 

He had no inclinations as t e· why , o r f o r whom, Steele was as}:ing ab(,ut 

Nanafo rt . _ carefully as}:ed arc)l..md some o f his _ 

friends . He said he may have asl:ed friend s and contacts in Russia , but 

he couldn ' t remember vff-hand . He a.J,jed that , f o r this t opic , his 

friends and contacts in Russia couldn ' t sa} very muc h because they ~ere 

" too far removed" fr om the matter . _ recalle,j that he \>las able 

t o find articles about Manafo rt ' s ties t o Utraine and the Philippines . 

repo rted some o f the finding s on this assig llment t o Steele 

, a seCllrE messenger app , ',lhi c h he has u s e:I , in additi o n t LI 

Skype , for c orrununicating ' .... i th Steele . 

(U // FOUO) In the 

an Orbis-related 

_ t oc· f: 

primarily on .-
info rmati on dealing with the US presidentia l 

election , including compromising materials on Donald Trump . _ 

said he could no t remember if Steele had asked _ t o as}: aru un:i 

f o r c ompromising materials on just Trump , o r Trump and Hillary Clint,) n 

- at which point atto rney 

him [the att o rney] previously that it 

indicated that _ had t .:. l:! 

had been bo th presidential 

candidateS . The request did no t shuck _ , but it wa s - again -

outside the nvrmal .sct..1pe o f W0 1- k and it vlasn ' t c<)mplete l ::' comf c/ ltable 

f o r him . Lil:e the Manafort assignment , it was no t really a 

Russia-specifi c jc.b anj it involved , indirectly , his 

. " He was nervous an,j cautious ~hen asl:ing around abou t 

the t opic in Russia , but he felt like he haj t o repo rt something ba c k 

to Steele abc, ut it . Steele ,ji,j not place any higller priority on the 
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Pnmary Subsource 

Re : 

election-related requirements ; it wa s still a s i de effort t o the 

. It 'Nas , t o _ , "unr>leasant ," but he 

made inquirie s and had a few election-related conversations , but it 

wasn ' t the main f ocus o f his tri~, . 

v. Pr lflldlY s uh ,OUl I I' 
Contacts on his l1li Trip 1IIIIIIII 

IUIIFOUO ) Source 2 

ar0und 

years . 

- a friend 

the company ' s public and governmental 

that the two o f them should try an ,j do projec ts t ogether f or money . 

_ t o ld _ that there 'lias comI=-,r omising material on Trumr::' . 

IUIIFCUC) Source 3 

:3 
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Re : 

(VII FOVOI 

Her 

Primary Subsource 

\>la 5 bo rn i . She- is a close , 

. She i s originally fr om . , and then 

have been friends since [the e~uivalent 

. Vpon reflecti on, 

corrected himself , indi cating that she had been a year behini 

She moved _ in 

She did a bit o f 

t oo l: 

and aI sc) 

nd 

and _ have remained friends f 0 r many "ltear s . 

him financiall y years ago - he woulj borr ow money 

and her 

recently , he has finan c ially - probably ar ou ni 

_ over the last II years . 

the 

. Thr ough 
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Pnmary Subsource 

Re : 

inf ormati on for Orbis across a wide range o f t opics - major Rllssian 

firms ; Russian state entities , including the Kremlin . "big 

connection " - though 

',]hO_ ha s relied t o get v ut hi s 0 1,.010 messaging . 

wasn ' t sure , but he thought these contac ts may inclu,je 

met while he was at 

also become goc"j friends with 

the , who was assaulted in Rus s ia 

for 

(U / / FOUO) is o ne o f the indivL!ual s who l:no·.s that _ 

worl:s f o r due diligence and business intelligellce . [ As an aside at tllis 

p.:oint , il1 sis t~d that 

idea about this than dQ~S 

Source 2 pl":baL-'l}- has a 1:~tt7r 

_ is allv'ays tryin g t~ 

mO:1eti::F.- his re-1ati .:o:1sh ip a,;7ain C,--' 

the- inre-rvi&I.,,&rs thar _ lv'il1 Q[t-=-ll pit .:h mon<5'y-making idea s :) r 

pr ....... je-cts - IILe-t ' s Ivo rk t oge-t her . I &""ii* ,;an try an.d ,;7&t ~ r-:o 

anSlve-r a qUE-st i Qn , but I ' ll neE:;:i som .::- m 0117}" to do it . "] 

morning or 

f o r help in 

In fact , 

nd asl:ed him 

in the 

United States are vie ... ;ing the Trump aimini s trati on . She is asking him 

the weel:end , probably so s he c an sell it to a frienj 

in ~lo scow . 

:5 
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Re : , o: /o r;. / : I 

(U / / FOUO) one o f the key sourCeS f o r the "Trump dossieL . " 

She is directly quo ted at po ints ; hOlllever , _ is not sure if s he 

reali=es that the quotations come fr om her . Right now, 

She is keepi 

used t o ~o r}: in the country o f 

(UI ' FOUO) Source .) 

. HeiS _ 

0 n an 

in 

speciali=es in regional politics , parti cu larly 

al so addresses US-Russ ian relations , US elections , 

and a hos t o f issue s involv ing US-Russian competition and confli c t, 

(U / / FOUO) e ve ryday job duties a s a 

vary . One day , he coulj be 

_ ; the ne:.-:t 

while the next , he could 

has contact with friends 

explained , it would not be 

he als o 

. As 

t o remark t r:, 

things lil:e , 1' 1 just hear ,j s uc ll-and - such fr om some one in the 

':'c 
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Primary Subsource 

Re : 

.. , " o r "I just 

11eard this from a Deputy Minister , " o r "1 just overheard such-anJ-such 

about an i ssue ." 

(U ! ! FOUO) _ and drinl: h.oavil" 

always loo l:s f o rward t o getting t og.other with 

in t o wn . _ knows that 

(U/ / F0 U0) Source 1 

(U ! ! FOUO) _ has I:no',m 

part o f a 

HE has 

travels 

is 

t o the 0 1 ,) and 

come s from , where he served in c ity and regi onal 

government positio ns , including and __ 

(U!!FOUO) 

explained that things di d no t wa rl: out well f o r 

he move :! t o __ and began 

- particularly with reSpE c t t o 

bac~:gr ound as a f o rmer means that, 

fr om a yo ung age , he has been involvej in po litical a c tivities . He ' s 

been in some f o rm o f po litics since he was a teenager . He is al so a 

but 

mEet t ogether whenever 
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Primary Subsouree 

Re : 

(U // FOUO) Orbis tnow. more about bec au s e , a s a favo r t o 

o ut t o Orbis t e, see if Orbi s coul d heIr' g~t 

a scho lar s hip f o r language cou r s e s in the 

a s ked _ f u r a ss i s tanc e , and _ 
turned t o Orbis f o r help . . ~s part o f thi S ,_ e:·:r-.lained :,.;ho 

was , and wh y he ~as as~:ing Orbi s f (l r assistanCE , 

is al',lays trying t o get s tart r>ll)jec t s 

and mate money together - _ related , lite o ther s , 

is always asking que s ti o n s Iil:e , " Can yo u get us some pro jec t s? " o r 

" Ca n YOll get us fillancing? " o r "Let ' s ·j o something t (lgether dealing 

',.;ith ! " _ d e,e s n ' t consider thi s a s hi s s o ur ce 

"ta s }:ing him" but as s impl y the no rmal ~our5e and s~o~le o f netwo r}:ing 

about . He 

_ went t o the Library o f Congre ss , perf0rmed arc hival res ear c L, 

l ' I II11,j l \ "'l!t'" llllt " and als o tall:ed t o academics he }:new . " 

(U // FOUO )_ h1 0 ',IS that travel s t e, the 

many things about , and fr om, 

1elati.)n5hip ',/it _ , 

inf0 rmatio n o f interest t o Orhi s , 

subjec t s l ite 

There , 

Securitj Service (FSB) , 
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Primary Subsource 

Re : 

as 'Nell as with individuals in the _ 111ho ' .. /Ere associate ·j 1tiith 

p01 itically-conservative and strongly Russian _ CirCles . It '118S 

through these tha 'lia s intruduced t o _. 

'Na s asked if ctevo ut O1'th0') 0 :·: believer -

did no t believe so , but thought that he might have been at 

o ne time . 

(UIIFOU0 j Source 5 

(V II FOVO) Source 5 is an 

person, and they are 

friends f o r about 

friends . She is tied t o 

the 

and 

. He ' s never been t o o ne o f 

that he ·je·esn ' t believe he ' s ever 

ha s met her in 

been 

many mL1t.ua~ 

and she ha s ties t o 

as ties t o the Ru ss ian intelligence 

remarl:ed that things have become 

"pErsonal" between and _ because o f stories that haole 

been ',nitten ( A.NA.Ll"ST NOTE : Thi s may be a ref~r-=nc -=- t J the fa:t that i.'1 

. The I-:al-ter 

Page-Sechin meeting references in the "Trump dossiEr " would havE been 

derivej fr om 

VI. Dossier Report Number 2016/95 

(V II FOVO ) The intE'r v ie'"er s asked _ t o re ,"ie'. Report : ,) lt /'· 5 . 

This materia l wa s collec ted ,juring the peri o,j where tIle 
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Primary Subsource 

Re : 

electi on-related theme wa s s till a "side pr0 jec t . " The elec ti on-relatE,j 

material became a mu c h mo re imp,) rtant pro jec t in the July- . .il.ugu s t :::>) If 

perie') . 

(U // FOUOl This repo rt invo lves reporting fr om · Source E" - repo rting 

'.hi ch _ tie s , at lea s t _ 

re l ated the st o r y abo ut hi s c o ntac t 111ith 

or July : 11 1t 

reac hed 

journalist f or 

ques tions Orbis had tasked him with regarding Trump ' s Ru s sian 

t him in COlltac t with ano ther o f hi s 

USPER 2 

contac t info rmati on , 

_ , somEo ne ',o]ith INhom "they " 

',las Even tall: about _ meeting 

it did no t happen . 

(U // FOUOl _ reached out v ia emai l twi c e. He never 

received a respo nse fr om the fir s t attempt, but after tile s e cond 

attempt , he received in c ir c a lat~: (l lC: a ver y s t!:ange- l=,ho ne call 

fr om a Russian male ',}ho he be l ieved t o be , but wh o never 

i dentified himself . The inii v idual on the o ther end o f the c a ll never 

identified himSelf . The t~o o ~ tllem tal.:ed f o r a bit, and the two (I f 

them tentativel~ agreej t o mEEt in person in 

o f July . . ~t the end o f Jul y , _ traveled t o 

but the meeting ne ver t ucd: plaCe and nc, one e ver c a l l e :! 

back . Altogether , he had only a s ingl e phone call with an 

individual he thought t o . The cal l wa s either a cellular 
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Primary Subsource 

Re : 

call , or it 1tla S a cOImnunicati on through a [-, hone app . _ 'Il ill 

100.: bacl: at hi s phone t o see if he can get caller information . 

VII . Dossier Report Number 2016/94 

IU // FOUO) This report invo lves th~ purported Carter Page meeting with 

Sechin , as well as the purported Carter Page meeting with Igor 

Diveykin . 

from his -. 
incti c acej that the sourc ing for tllis repo rt j~ri~es 

conver sa tl ons with Source 5 and . 

IU / / FOUO) .I\s ~lS , Carter Page ,las (>ne o f 4-5 nam~ s that 

Steele prov ided t o _ . CartEr Page , as _ relates , had 

his meetings in Moscow in early July :01i - either the fth tlllOUgl, the ~ 

th 0 1- the 5 th thr ough the So th o _ t (,l _ that she had 

heard that Carter Page was go ing t'J meet with Sechin , and then later , 

in 'I'1riting , 

actually 

that the Page-Sechin meeting haj 

sa id that he woulj confirm the date , 

time and c irc ums tances under whict Source 5 confirmej t o him 

that the Page-Sechin meeting had ta~:en place . He will c he cl: 

hi s pho ne , but he r ecalls that he receive·j the conf irmati on from 

via te:-:t in September :Olc 'Iihen he 111as at 

_ 'da s able t o confirm that the Page-Sechin meetinq 

t oo k place through one 0 ~ her contacts -

. . i7l. 1 t ogethe r , 

him abo ut the Sechin-Page meeting, and then later con firmed via text 

that the meeting had taken place . 

travels t o the 
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Primary SubSDuree 

Re : 

~ VIII. Media Contact/Outreach to ~ 

(U / / FOUO) _ rece i ved [\40 me.jia in ;:!uiries on thE- d0ssie l . One 

was from a speciali=ed ourna l , while the o ther was fr om 

no t responded t o either inquir~' 

25 January 2017 

FBI Washington Field Office Interview Room 

Present : 

Primary Subsource , interv ie"wee 

, interviewee ' s att o rney 

, FBI Special Agent l1li 
FBI Superviso ry Intelligence .l..nalyst l1li 
, Deputy , Natio nal Security Division , US De~lartment o f 

Justice 

I . Recent Communication by Christopher Steele 

(0 / /FOOO repo rted that Chr i s t opher Steele hai reached (,ut t c· 

o He has not repl i ed , but is I=,lanning to ·:10 so 

either t onight o r t o mor r O',l . Hi s plan i s t o s imp ly say that he ha::; been 

meeting with his 
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Pnmary Subsource 

RE : 0:/0°/: 

II . Documents · 

(U / / FOUO) brought tl1rEE document s for the interviewers . The 

first \'>/as -the Russian-language text interacti o n 

regarding the Sech in -Page meeting in 

betvleen _ an...::! 

July :01E . The s e cond 

'Ilere - , 
document was a copied pastiche uf a number (,~ profiles , business cards 

and pictures , which will be e xplained in further detail bel o w. 

(U//FOUO) Regarding Document #1 , the te~t interaction between 

and _ , he e:·:plaineci that the date he had given 

yesterday wa s incorrect . The 

versus _ , and it '",auld have been 

immediately f ollo'o'Jing his _ trip in 

when they had the interacti on. Interviewers 

vloul j be translated , but _ '-'lanted t o i=,oint 

out that the Russian initials [which , transliterated into Englisl1 Wuu ld 

be I . I . S . ] stand f o r Igo r Ivano~ich Sechin . 

(U / / FOUO) Regarding Doc ument #: , these are ~,ictures an:! pro files o f the 

l ' I Hll<lf\ Sllh,'ltHt ,. friends and associates in networJ: discussed the previ ous 

day . attorney balked at the use o f the term "networJ: ," 

s tating that the preferred term was "s0cial circle ." One o f the 

as having stu.jiej 

at 

(U / / FOUO ) Regarding Document # 3 , the f ollo 'ding informatio n 'Nas 

pr0vije,) : 
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Pnmary Subsouree 

(U//FOUO) In the upper left hand corner , 

as the 

with him, but 

and 

direct interacti o n 

and _ have- direct contact . 

o n friendly terms . 

(U//FOUO) Underneath _ pho t o is a business card fr om 

noted as Deputy Directo r , 

business card is what appears t o be a 

Windows Outlaa}: references to 

Meavedev ' s people" abo ut what the Kremlin was doing with respe c t 

to inv01 Vernent in the US [Jresi.jential electi o n . _ [emarke j 

how the Russian influence issue was ~0nsi,jere,j an "open secret" 

and that he was hearing similar st o ries f1 Gm o ther sources -

".robably Source 3 

(U // FOUO) Next t o the Wind ows Outl oo t screenshot on 

there is a list of t:-,ricing 'l1ith the title , translated fr om P.ussian 

as "collect i o n banJ:no te United States , j oc . " att0 rney 

emphasi:ed that he did no t belie?E this represented anythillg 

illegal or illicit 

this in 

and his 

. ' he >lent t 
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Re : 

III. 

Primary Subsource 

rubles - using the current excllange rate . As he remar~:ed tile 

previous day , and has been d () ing s o 

for decades . The pricing list is a 'wi s h list . " [As an aside , 

iends , __ 

(U//FOUO) In the upper right hand cor ner , _ identified 

. She is currently serv ing as the head 

[.4N.4LYST NOTE : This may lee- a misi:iE-:Jtificari on . The- il'CaJ o f 

] , who in turn is 

_ has 

direct access . _ said that he has n,o t 

use _ as a s o urce f o r the reports , but that they are 

good friends and that he has kno ',111 her f o r at least __ years . 

RUSSian official RUSSian official , Veterans Pension System , and 

Dossier Report 2016/111 , including Paragraph #5 

(U // FOUO) Underneath the picture G i s a business card 

get conversation started about UI:raine and sanctions . 

:5 
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Primary Subsource 

Re : 

_ first sa id that he kno ws that .. has been back in Russia 

since August ::: OlE , but then thought a bit more and 5a ij , "maybe summer 

2(116 . " _ described 

in the [Trump] dossier ." 

isn ' t 

positive about that . He recalls that they had a conversation later in 

spring :01.0 during ','hieh time .. said that he had "put 

in a word" and wondered if it had helped . They had a 5-10 minute chat 

.4NiiL"fST NOTE : It is u:1cl..::ar if it h'as thE- same sprin,:1 ~ Olo c.::'nv-:-rsati~"n 

or a later 2ol1vcrsatiL",,>n] 

_ that 

really supposed 

during which time _ confided in 

was getting tired o f Ij e, ing what he wasn ' t 

to be doing in his j ,ob -

"e xposed" in the US election . It was 

bacl: t o Russia and ilopej for an 

(U / / FOUO) ,-
explained that since his time a 

fr om diplomats at the Russian Emba ssy . He anj USPER 

contact l,oJith a _ secre tary at the Embassy - a strange guy 1/ 11-11:' 

wa s pesteril)g them . They gave this inji vidual open source information . 

about Ukraine and the Orange Revolu ti o n , anj USPER recommended 
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Pumary Subsource 

Re : 

that they keep him at a distance . 

related to the interviewers 

inf~rmati ()n . ] _ had 

to travel t o - sometimes driving 

. _ c()mpletely ·jruppe,j o ff 

the map sometime aroun j : ')07 - : O(,t' , 

(U // FOUO) Loo king at Report :<)1('/111 , _ ..,a~ as):ed ab<o< ut the 

report ' s use of the descripto r , "a trusted compatrio t . " - as in 

paragraph one , "SpeaJ:ing in confidence t o a truste,j compatrio t in 

mid-September :OlE ... " he was the "truste] 

compatriot " in tlle se saii that it might be him, but 

that it could also be others . att o rney then jumpe,] in , 

stat ing that the "literary je¥ice" usej by Steele in the j .)ss ier was 

not consistent and not clear , so he wanted t o be careful about mat ch ing 

that ,:iescr iptor t o his cl ient . _ sai j that , t .. ) the best c,f his 

J:nowledge, he i s no t sure if he was the o nly one worJ:ing (r n this i ssue 

f or Orbis (and tllerefore he 1S not clear if he i s always the "truste:i 

compatriot " menti o ned in the documents] 

(U / / FOUO) Intervie',lers dre.., f '1IIll d l, Si r! , .j IIIIl t' attenti on t o ~Iarag raph 5 o ~ the 

same report , where Mikhail F\a1ugin (r,nitten as F\ulaginJ is menti oned, 

_ is n .... )t clear h0 1,1 

indicated that no t1F.L.. (If: icial 
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Primary Subsouree 

Re : 

"a bright young guy ." 11a$ no idea where the language in thi s 

paragraph regarding "clea n in thi s regard" ('.vi th respect 

t o ~:n owledge and invo lvement in US electi o n matter s 

IV . Dossier Report 2016/94 

(V II FOVO) Regarding Paragraphs 1 and : , int:ervie',ler s ",ent bac!: over 

fr um the pre~i 0us day , particularly the iSSU2 

ad hear j fr c,m that the Page-Se chin 

meeting tllas go ing t o hal=,pen, that it had happenej , 0 1- bo th . _ 

e~plained that he didn ' t: re call Nh o had t o ld him that the meeting was 

go ing t o happen - it might have been through , but the mo re 

he tho ught , the more he believed it ',.;a s fr ()m SI)meone else , and he 

couldn ' t recall wh o . He repo rted the meeting t o Steele in July . an,j 

then , in October , he the confirming 

_ ·j ues no t 

l:no w the identity 

(V II FOVO) Regarding Paragraph 3 ,:m ,:art:er Page' s meeting '.ith Igo r 

said that thi s info rmati o n c arne from Source 3 

had a phone conve r sation , o r maybe s !:ype , but 

1.>la S a -,lu i e€' corrununicati o n ''''hieh lasted 

about 30 minutes . _ s aid it 1,JaS duri ng the summer , because he 

l-emembers having the conversati0 n t,./hile -Has at the publi c swimming p oo 2. 

and "whatever " with .-
was relating information that she ~as hearing fr om her sources -

,ji ,j no t as~: her abo ut the ijentities o f these S(lu rce s . 

could probably f ol low-up 

he explained that he ha s no reason 

'Hith ~l1t the sour ces , 

t o dOUbt~. H~ trus 

but 
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Pnmary Subsource 

(V I/ FOUO) On the Olveykin identifi c ati \) n , thi s !,la S the name her S0ur C e S 

gave her . He was in the Domestic Po licy enti t1' and '~a s o ne o f the 

people in charge o f US-P.u s sia roelatio n s (P,N.l,LYST NOTE : 

descripti on wa s s ome one unclear here , bec ause Ile adde·j , 

" e l ecti on-related stuff , " but then went bac}: t o referring t c, it a s 

" US-Russia relati ons . "] suggested that there was an attempt t o 

masquerade things o r c raft a fa~a ,je bec au s e "the f 01 1:5 wh o were in 

domestic p o licy were wo rking external ( f o reign] po li c y , while the f o lks 

do ing external were wo rl:ing dome s ti c matter s , " 

exp l aine.j that , on the wh o le , hi s C() l1 ver s ati ons 

T .. 1i th 

security-w i se . 

'.ere talking 

refer t o it . 

in an opaque way , 50 a s t o be careful 

an·,j _ knell! that 'Ilhen they talked , the y 

US elec ti on is s ue , but woul dn ' t nec e ssaril; 

(U / / FOUO) _ is the Gne '.ho t Gl d _ that the P.us s ian 

government was sitting on " }: ompromat" as s tated in paragraph 4 . 

(U / / FOUO) Prrllldr\ Slit) ,Ollll t' att o rney s tated that it wa s hi s cl ient ' s 

assessment that this info rmation fr om was c redible and 

accurate . It is conc lus i on that the info rmation in 

paragraph 3 c ame fr om his c onvEr s ation I,olith 

(U / / FOUO) _ i s "inco nclusi ~le" about 'where e:-:a c tly the 

info rmatio n in paragra~,h 4 c ame fr om. He thinJ:s 11E and may ha ve 

spo ken about it - tiej t o b o t l_ and Ivanov - but he 

',]o uld o fficial close t o Ivanov ." Whe n 

asked by interviewers how t G 
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.Prlmary Subsource 

R~· ~ . o: /o s- / 

r..:hristopher Steele , _ s aid that he ,jesc ribed her a s "my f1'ien:i 

wh o }:nows someone in the Kremlin with direc t / indirect a ccess t o Serge ~' 

Ivanov , " 

IV. Dossier Report 2016/134 

(U // FOUO) The info rmati on in the fir s t paragraph o f this report ~ ame 

fr om text inter c hange with Source 5 in Oc t o ber : I) lt: . 

(U I i FOUO) _ '..Ja s less con c lus i v e abo ut the cons truc ti0 n v f 

paragraph ~ The final sentenc e about the lifting (,f s anc ti ons wa s 

text in Oc t ober , but 

t o had been o ffere ·] any bro kerage o f the 1 c .• 

Rosneft stal:e . There were s peculations and " open secret s " about Ros nett 

and f o reign o fferings . Fo r e:·:ample an energy 

analyst and pro fes sor (AN.-iLrST NOTE : Thi s appe-ars t o b& id7.71 ti ·.:al [ ,:­

h'11 0 a s o f _ lia s t h e- _ of Russia ' ~ 

suggested in br0a.j terms t o _ i_ 
that onc e s anc ti ons were l ifted , Ros neft 

could find itself in a ·pri~ileged" s tat e . As an a s ide , -remarked tha~is 

Ga:prom l obbyist . 

o ften di s mi ssed intrins i c ally a s being a 

V. Michael Cohen, Prague and Dossier Reports 2016/135, 2016/136, and 

2016/166 

(U / / FOUO) _ began hi s e:·:planati .)n v f the Prague and Mi c hae l 

Cohen-related report s by stating that Chri s t opher Steele had g i ~en him 

4-5 names t o research f o r the elec ti on-re l at ed ta s ~:ing . He c0ul ·j I) nl y 

remember three o f the name s : Carter Page , Pau l Nanaf..) rt and Mi c ha e l 

Cohen . When he tall:ed t o Source 3 in the fall o f :O l i - he be l i e~e s 
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Primary Subsource 

it was a phone call - he rattled off these names and , out o f tllem , 11E' 

was surprised t o hear that . immediately [later _ softened 

this to "almost immediately"] recogni:ed C0112n ' g name. 

(U / / FOUO) In Report : ,) 1E/ 135 , _ d i d no t i:no',i the origins ,:· f 

paragraph 1 . He said that it didn ' t come fr om him , and that he doesn ' t 

I:no w where the illformati o n i s fr om. He ie-scribed it as "too general . " 

(U // FOUO) In paragraph = 
recogni:ed material fr om his conver s ati ons 

middle o f the paragrar.h . t;! had t old 

three o ther unidentified people had fl own 

later , "assumed they had flown") into Prague in August-September :Oli 

and had met v/ith a gr o up fr om Russia. _ asked her 'l1h('1 else 

besides Cohen had come into Prague fr om the US 2.ije - she didn ' t kn "::'",o} , 

but she was willing t o go baci: and finj out . She never go t baci: t o him 

about thi s . _ als o asked about the participant s o n the Ru ss ian 

s ide . She didn ' t kn ow, but she inji c ated that her "be s t gue ss " o r "her 

understanding" was that they were fr om "Lega l Affair s " o r "Legal 

Department . II indi c ated tha di ·j no t say why s he 

thought that . 1lla s n ' t aware that such an entity e:-:i s ted - he 

was not able t o find it through research . 

(U / / FOUO ) Reflecting 0n the Prague-relate·:! material , 

believes he had : , maybe even 3 , conversations with 

this topic later in Oc t ober . No thing on Prague anj Cohen was 

collec ted during the . tri P in 

is the one duri ng which he believe 

T11e first conver s ati o n 

notej her recogniti on 

o f Co hen ' s name . The second conversatio n is the one in whi c h she 

discussed Prague , the visit o f Cohen plus three o ther indiviiual s , 
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, 

Re : , O:/O~/:O 

and the meeting with the Russian side . There may have been a tilir ,j 

conversation o n the topic , bU _ could no t recall e:·:actly 

and said that they had also talked abou t "a private subject . " 

(U // FOUO) In ,j oe-sn ' t believe he ,j iscllssej Paul 

Manaf o rt with up Carter Page or Manaf or t 

during these Oc tober conversations . The d irect quo te " ... to sweep it all 

under the carpet ... " is fro~ . • did no t sa] , hO'/lever I !/ihy Cohen 

went to Prague instead o f Carter Page . 

(U // FOUO) In Dossier Repo rt :OlE/l~E . Source 3 is the 0 ne 1, 1110 

provided the Rosso trudniche s tvo info rmati o n and the i dentificatio n o f 

said that during either the second or third 

the Cohen matter , had initiall:! 

thought the meetings invo l ved the "legal department " but then 

identified _ and Rosso trudni c hes t v0 . _ ker,t l)ushing 

f o r info rmati o n about the ijentities o f the US parti c ipant s , 

but she did no t ~:n ow . On the P.l1ss ian s ide , _ re ·.:Jue sted that she 

g o bac}: t o her sour ces , and it was after that s he c ame bac}: with the 

identificati o n o f . HO'lleveI , _ said that _ nFle r 

menti oned or said .... /as 'Il o r~:ing "under P.ossotrudniche stvo 

cover , " as is stated in the repo rt . _ had done his own research 

and confirmed that e:·:isted . 

(U // FOUO) In the same repo rt , menti oned 

"deniable cas ]1 payments" pushe.j 

substanCe o f the meeting in Prague , but he is no t sure wa 5:: 

brainst orming here , o r if she is relating info rmati o n from her sourCES . 

details regarding •• 
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Primary Subsource 

him 

the o ther day t o ask 

spea kers and Trump . 

an article about Russian 

t,,j the 

United States . To questions posej by F3I S.1l, _ an:! comments 

made by his atto rney , _ iniicatej that he could carefully 

Source 3 , perhaps even meet her in a third c ountry . T0 

try and get additio nal info rmati o n o f interest t e. the FBI ',;oul ,:! 

require in-person conversation , and _ ·.:jlJipI:,ed that he ' oj 

never been _ . sa i d that he had J::llans t e. v i s i t 

her earlier thi s year , but that it didn ' t work out . 

sa id that s he ~:new that he haj ~ · lan s t(, visit her ill 

the two o f them haj talked through the plans . When 

would be comfortable talking t o the FBI , 

· ... 18$11 ' t S LlrE . 

(U /l f OUO )_ summar i:ed that , 'I,hen it come s to the dos.sier , the 

Page material regarding Sechin ~ame fr om , whi le the 

Cohen / Prague material c amE frum ... 

(U// FOUO) In paragraph 3 o f P.e~,o rt : 1)lUlC': , _ said that he 

believes that the matel"ial "s tro ngly c0r res ponds " t o a recent , December 

: 0 16 conversati o n that he haj with Source 3 . This wa s a separate , 

f o llow- o n conver s ation t o the Oc t ober c onversa ti ons mentionej before . 

The material i s no t wo r ,j-fo r-wo rj fr om his canver sati (, n with 

but partially-based 0 n their December :Olc telepho ne cO lnrer sat i .) I1 . Fo r 

e:-:ample , in their cOl1 versat i o n , 'Ilhile he doesn ' t remember her s a::'ing 

__ he j o e s recall her s aying He recalls that she taU:ej 
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about " affiliate s " but s he :iid no t mentio n the De-mc-c rati e 

Party in the way that the report says . As he mentioned earlier, he 

stated their conversations were he l d in the overall context o f the US 

elections and hac}:ing , but he is no t s ure if slle mentio ned a specific 

p o litical party o r candidate at this time . She ,ii ,j menti o n "po rn 

traffic" as mentioned in this paragraph . _ does no t recall 

reference t o a specific time frame o f Harch thr ough September 

(U// FOUO) d id menti on bo th wh o 

she menti o ned - as s tated in the repo rt - w0 r}: "under the FSB . " Silt? 

menti oned _ and all o f hi s s maller subsidiaries and compani es . 

sa i d tllat , wllieh 

sa i d 

the interviewers that his understanding o f thi s t opic (i . e . cyber) wa s 

is no t an IT s pecialist hers elf . never 

said that was invo lved in any o f this. He said that 

paragraph 3 has reference s and ):eywo rds involv ing payments and cover-up 

fr om 11i s conversat i on with 

(U // FOUO) With respect t o paragraph 4, Source 3 gave thi s a s a J:ind 

o f example . She d idn't offer any specific info rmation o r e v idence , but 

that this (e . g . Romanian hac}:er s hea ,jing t o Bulgaria t o lay low) i s a 

kind o f e:·:ample [.J.N.!lL)·ST NOTE : It s .,.~m.,.d d-::-scripti ....... n 

that this miqht b.:;:. nalysi s ] . where the 

term "bol t hol e u i s from, and triej , unsuccessfully , t o thin): abo ut 

what Russian term this might be representing . When a5):ed if everything 

in this paragl"aph came fr om , _ s ai d that it ',.;a 5 

difficult t o say with certaint y . It sounds like material that 

would say . Looking bad: thr ough the paragraph , _ said that 
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everything befo re the term " lay while 

he is no t sure about everything after that term . 

about the specifics in thi s ~aragr aph an j a g reed with interviewers that 

the report ha s mo re s pec ifi c l angua ge (pl a c e names ; ethni c it~ o f 

hacker s ) than o ther reports , Interv iewer s brought up the fa c t that 

_ had mentio ned the prev i 0 11 s da y 

and had a famil y vacation home 

SPo ):~ 
iid nut kno '" if 

the family horne wa s in _ , but as}:ej wa ~ " o n the c.,:.a s t" 

bec ause that ' s where typi c a l family va c ati on homes were l oc ated . 

VI. Source 6 RIA Novosti, and Dossier Report 2016/95 

(U / / FOUO) _ 'Na s asked t o g o bac k over the rer:'(ll-r S d isc ll sse d in 

brief the prev i o us day regar d ing hi s interac ti on with Source 6 

_ s aid that Chri s t ophe r Steele had a s ke d him t o fin d sour c e s 

linl:ed t o the Trump team , Wh 0 c0ulj answe~ the overar ching ,~ue s tl (' n S 

regarding Russia ' s connec tio ns t o the team , et c . _ turne :1 t ,-, 

hi s c ontac ts at , and hi s contac t s there t o l d him 
I ' fH lldl\ ..... lJt' ,I lUf f \ ' that there wa s "thi s guy , Source 6 " tha t he 
1'lImdr~ ..... 1111 ,"Ill!' s houl d tall: t o , 

met in per son with 
' .. 

',.;ho 

understands} and vlho is .. ) J1e .) f . _ 

said tha two o f US PER • 
them met over lunch at a Thai res taurant . He d idn ' t want t o a s ~: 

USPER ver y targeted o r r e vealing ,~ue s ti 0n s f o r tile elec ti on 

as s ignment , so he ):ept them bl'oaj in scope ("Do YO ll 

know anyone wh o c an tal): about al l o f thi s Trump/ Manafo rt s tuff , o r 

Trump and Russia ?" USPER commented abollt how there 1.-Ja s a great 
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amount o f speculation about Russian influence and Russian ties , but 

that he was s t eptical and nothing substanti ve had turned up . 

'~] ith hi s 

said that "there [is l thi s 

coulj ~ ' r0bably get hi s 

contact informatio n . " the enj , 

USPER gave him email , and that he 
I ' I 1111 ,If , " Ill ' ,(l lIll, ' never met 

if ile s till ilas [11~ ~maill 

(U / / FOUO) June o r July :0 1 6 - but 

. _ did no t 

receive a response fr om thi s email , but says that it ',ias at that f-' v int 

that "things gvt strange . " In July : Ol i , he received a telephone call 

from an unidentified Russ ian guy . He thought it wa s - he s till 

thints it - but the iniivijual never identified himsel f a s 

They tal~:ed f o r about 10 minutes , anj then arranged t o meet 

t ogether up US City 

(U/ / FOUO) remembered that they made f-.lans t o mEet 

and that o ffer ed t o come up " an~'time" '''as available . 

'N'v uldn ' t conunit t o a specific time , but sa id that he 

c ould be !II could no t recall if 

sa id he lived 

tha t he did . 

travelej questio ns , 

visit would have been near the end o f 'l1i th 

him 

that it wou lj be 
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hard to reach out to him ~ now because he was in 

_ ._ remembers providing Christ o pher Steele 'Ni th the 

information about whereabouts in 

(U / / FOUO) _ tried one more 

:OIE . He decided 

inV0 1ved in 

pro ject , so , 

him a brochure about 

generate a respo nse . 

and _ became 

remember 1,o,hich o f them 

no t 

sent 

and the pers on he believed - and still 

believes - t o be one l el -1S minute c onversati on. _ 

says that · Source EN in Report : O I~ / oS sounds like it i s fr om this 

conversation . During the phone c all , he remembers menti oning Manafurt 

and Page . _ recalls that this 1 1: 1-15 minute co nversati o n 

included a general discllssi o n about TnJmI=' and the r.:re-mlin , that there 

',las "conununi cati o n" betyleen the partie s , an ,-j that it ',la 8 an o ngo ing 

relatio nship . _ recall s that the injividua l believed t o be 

~ said that there was "exc hange o f inf ormation" between Trump and 

the Kremlin, and that there was "nothing bad abo ut it . '_ said 

that s ome o f this info rmatio n e :·:c hange could be g00,j f ,,) r Russia , aIEl 

some could be damaging t o Trump , but deniable . The individual said that 

the Kremlin might be o f help t o get Trump elec ted, but _ did 

no t recall any dis c ussi o n o r menti o n o f Wil:ileal:s . 

(U// FOUO) Besides the H I-IS minute co nver s ati o n, _ had nCl 

further CI)ntact with (o r the perso n he believed t o be ) . 
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VI . Trump , the Ritz Carlton and Dossier Report 2016/80 

(U// FOUO) The interviewer s bro ught ')rlflldl\ Suh ,I)ur ~ , · attenti o n t ,) tile re~.o rt 

regarding Trump ' s alleged unorthodo~ se~ual a c tivity at the Rit: 

Carlt on Ho tel - specifi cally paragraph 3 o f 

s aid that thi s illfo rmatio n c ame , partial l y, 

Source 2 circle o f associates and friends , o nce 

mo re, is primarily in the _ sphere , but hi s s oc ia l netlll o rk i s 

vast , and he has o ther, random a ssoc iate s . In fa c t , a s another example, 

travels t o SIA SIA 

(U // FOUO) When _ as):ed ... in early June : 0 1€ (the . 

knew o f any compr omi s ing material s o n about whether he 

activities in the 

the Rite Carlton . 

preparati ons 

invo lved the 

said that there wa s a "well .:nown s t o ry" about Trump ' s 

water s po rt s " and had 

engagej in that ac tivit y "in the pre s ijential s uite" at the Rit= 

Carlt on . In terms o f ' .... hether the s t 0 r y \013 S true , e :':p l ained 

that pe ople "kno w" but that it "o nl y become s fa c t if people come 

f o rward ." sai d that the ho t el i s buggej , and "hea ven o nly 

(U // FOUO) .".s _ e:·:plained it , the fa c t o f hote l bugging an,j the 
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use o f filmed "komprornat" is no t uncvmmo n . _ re l ated the name s 

o f those who have been targete ,j in thi s wa~' - [Yuriy] SI:urat ov , 

[Mithail] Kasyan ov , and Vlad imir Ru s htov [un c lear , maybe Ry:hl: a v] . 

_ has also been able t o comment 0 n h0tEl bugging be c ausE it i s 

generally J:nown , a s he explained t v interv iewer s , that if you want t v 

visit M O SC O'11 and no t bE VUlnel"able t o being buggei , you have t c. s tay 

away fr om the Rit: Carlto n , the Ho tel Mos tva , and the Ho tel Peting . 

IU // FOUOI Regarding paragraph 4 in Repo rt :O lf /80 , 

asked about "thi s stuff about Trump at the hotel . " Hi s inter1 0cut o r ~ 

laughed it o ff , stating that "all tinds o f thing s happen at the h c,tel" 

and 'IIi th celebritie s , "one never kn o' .. 1s what they ' re do ing . II _ 

said that it wa s n ' t a jenial . Ani a s l:ing the hotel s taff who were 

assisting 'Ilith the II arrangement s , ,)ne gir l commente:! that "anything 

g oes " at the hotel , and added that , "o ffi c ial l y , we don ' t Ilave 

[:.r05 t.i tute s . /I 

IU // FOUOI Fo r this s t o ry , Chri s t opher Steele wa s gi v en the names a f the 

management at. the Rit: (":arlt o l1 . _ s aid t.hat he rep0 rted Trumr:,' s 

uno rthodo~·: s e:·:ual a c ti v it y at the Rit: as "nJm.) [ and s pec ulati vn" an ,j 

that he had no t been ab l e t t..' cl..)nfirm the s t (> ry . 

IU // FOUO) In the same rep,or t , paragraphs I , 4 an,j 5 , 

identified "Sourc e 8 " a s 

repo rted that he 

the content in the repo rt . 

thr o ugh 

"had a convers atio n" about 

that they had "embarrass ing 

stuff- s e :.:ual / po rnographi c material " o n a number o f f o lks , "inc lu :iing 

Trump . " _ said that the end o f paragrar:,h 4 regarding the 
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ability to blackmail Trump 1,las "logical c0l1clusi0n" rather than 

that the mention of the 

a conversati on bet\Oleen _ a 

t oo l: place in June :OlE at 

himself J • 

in paragraph 5 was part I) f 

but _ has nc) idea 

where the mention of "Department K o f the FSB " is from . He does not 

recall hearing t11at , or menti oning that t o Chr i stopher Steele . 

Ad,jitionally , the years over which the "J:omprornat" file was collectej 

',lere als0 never mentic-ned , t o PIIIl) ,II\ ~IJt\ ,dUI ( l' reee, lle-eti o n . 

26 January 2017 

FBI Washington Field Office Interview Room 

Present : 

, intervievlee 

interviewee ' s att o rney 

, FBI S!=,ecial !\gent • 

FBI Supervis o ry Intelligence .!!..nalyst • 

, Deputy , National Security Division , US Department 0: 

Justice 

I. Recent Communication by Orbis Representative ; Overall Wellbeing 
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(U II FOUO) his atto rney related that Chris Steele had 

morn ing . One o f Steele ' s associates at 

Orb i s , sa ij hE- has 

seen appr o~imately 1: times - rema r ):e j that 

_ "had been lying t ()v 10' .. / . " hajn ' t 

heard from him ove r the past 1(1 days , and that t.hey ',;anted t o ):now 'Ilhat 

wa s go ing 

and at hi 

talking t o an attor ney ... 
s taying in a ho tel 

(U II FOUO ) _ did no t s pea): with Steele during thi "' c(,nversa tio n . 

_ heard fr um _ that Stee le wa s s till " lying I ,) ',] " but that 

"everyo ne " 'lias concErned abo llt ·Iiellbeing . [ANjli'i"ST Ne TE : 

TilEr att orn-=y comment-:-d that til-:-

i:1dicat i on o f hOlv his .:li~nt ivas put tr..ro uqh th-:: r.:-:rui cm..:.-nt :1'.; 1-:- -

i nitially r-:- ,:ruit<?d L~r Ch ri s SC':-71-=- , but pas5E-d 2ft C __ "' und-=-rli:l ,:75 [ ,-"l r 

iay-t o -.:iay manaq~ment . ] _ and _ Jiscussej s.,:·me poss iblE 

future assignments - "s mall due jiligence assignment s unrelated t o 

~'ul itics " - and _ indicatej that thej ',]uuld run stuff by him if 

something c ame up - but [and it hfas n,::)t ::17ar it this Iva s ~ 

actual c..)mmEnt or I-:-fl-::- .; ti .J l1] prubably n() t muc h in the aIea 

o f Russia . There was tall: abou t '1liring past due monies f o r _ t o 

. Or , _ added , there ",la S also jiscussion abo ut 

getting him mo ney through "someone we }:now [ in the Uni ted States]n 

_ was hesitant abo ut arranging payments in an)! t,/ay that "lo0ted 

s trange . n 

(U II FOUO) _ t uld _ that s ince the Bu::feej s t urj hit the 

news , Orbis has received :0 , 000 emails . 
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(U // FOUOI No o ne from 

1'11111.11\ SlIt, ,OIHI~' typically war l:s from his 

home . He wa r}:s o ff-hours , given the time difference 

t-IOSCO'II and London . There i s space and somE desks he 

. ' but mos t o f hi s 'J/o rk is done at home . 

bet;Jeel" 
can use a l 

(U // FOUOI _ commented that , unle ss hi s name goes public, he i s 

fine when it come s t o hi s sour ce networ l: . HE dOEs n ' t believe he can 

be in danger and , as he ~·u t 

(U / / FOUOI _ indicated that Orbi s does kn o,; the identi ties o f 

some o f his sou r ces - they have some first and last names . Fo r e~ample , 

(U / / FOUOI _ sa id that he had g o ne bad: t o c hec l: f cor electronic 

communicat.io n reco rds, but he said that he had deleted mus t o f the 

electi on-related conununic ati ons "months ago . " ME als o has a different 

pho ne fr om the one he used prev i ous 11' , He dijn ' t :Iele te ..::omrnuni ca ti ..:m 

involving USPER 2 [see previolls day ' s interview] , and he haj 

repor ted that c OITUnunicati o n t o Chri s t ophe!" Steele . 

(U//FOUO) Dossier Report 2016/86 

(U / / FOUOI _ '.a s asl:ed a number c' f ,:jue s tio n s regarding the 

sourci ng and info rmati on about the FSB e yber-related dossier repo rt . 

(U // FOUO) In paragraph 1 , the Ilf o rmer senior intelligence o ffi cer " i s 

Former RUSSIan Intel ligence 

info rmati o n directly t C, 
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cafe . 

(UI/FOUO) Some of the material in paragraph: was not familiar t.:) 

. In general , the material tracts 'Ilith comments made t o 

Source 2 by , with corrobvration via o["en source 

material. Looking more over the paragraph , _ said that thE­

material begins with the sentence , "To compensate for this 

shortfall.," _ does not recall using thE terms "fi rst tier" (in 

the fir st sentence) in hi s reports t o Steele - he is not sure tllat 

information came from him 

IU // FOUO) The material in paragraph 3 could be referencing material 

gleaned from o ne of riends Friend 

_ . When he "as caught 

\'facili tating payments for a pornographic 'Ilebs i to2 . " He was \) ffered a 

deal - coope rate with tIle FSB or potential11 go to jail . He en,je,j up 

doing some 'Ilork for the FSB, but _ d0Esn ' t kn c,..., \olhat type \:,£ 

did f,:> r the FSB [.'1N.4LrST NC' TE : This is i:l~;)il tra:Ji_-ti_':l 

to stat,:::mE-l1t th~ first day, at h'hi.:-h time h~ i ncii ·.::ar.::::.i that 

h"=" did no t have any ::onta ·:ts assoc iat-:-j [.,rith the Russia:1 intelli..;;~.T:-:-

and securitJ" s~rvi,;~s . ] 

_ , and he 

FSB activity] around 

~:new of many other people who have 

[With the FSB] . Presently , 

_ is unclear 

might be working for 

i s a couple of years younger than 

to "normal life" [that is, pos t 

_ told _ that he 

been put in a similar situation 

-.; hOltJEVer, 

thought that _ 

for the banl:ing 

industry , and /o r doing something in the way of 

as}:ed i_ llJould cons i der _ a 

said "yes , li}:e myself , but in a ,jifferent [sect(. r] , " 
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(U // , OUO ) In the same pal'agraph - l',aragraph 3 - the po rti o n that begins 

with " In o ne case a US c iti:en ... n was derivej fr om a c0nver s ati on with 

related this story , indi c ating that the US 

friend who does wa rl: witll "educa ti onal ap~,s or 

something . " 

(u // , OUO) , o r paragraph 4 , _ could no t attl' ibute it to any 

sourCE in particular . Tile "fo reign direct0r o f a company , n recalled 

_ , is a f o reign ,jirect(,r o n the board ,of _ , but he elL! 

know the exact identity . 

(u// ,OUO) ,or paragraph 5 , _ said that some o f the info rmati o n 

discuss i o ns with the Russian 

i s an incojrrect 

haj mentio ned t o him 

that Telegram had been compr omise.j . 

(U// , OUO) Regarding paragral',h E , _ c(,u ld n(,t at tr ibute it 

conclusively to any particular source . He said that he c an ' t confirm 

it , but he believes the source may haVe been 

is open source , hOWe ver . 

Source 2 

(U//FOUO) General Summariz i ng about 
1 '11'1111\ Suh (lllll t' 

Sources 

Some (, f it 

(U / / FOUO) The intervie',ojer s asked _ i:, generally speaking about 

the dossier a s a whole , the mentio ns (', f Dmitriy PeSL0\" [Putin ' s press 

secretary} and Sergey Ivanov can be typicallj sourced to.:. Source 3 

_ said has jirect anj indirect contact ltiith a 

deputy , or multiple deputies , in . . o.s state·) earlier, 
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.-said that , through and the 

deputies ani assistants she uses f o r getting her inf o rmati o n . 

(U//FOUO) When it comes t o any material on 

_ got talf: t o th_ . During that 

indicated that power and authority when 

it came t o press relations had centrali:ed o n Pes}:ov . 

friend indicated that" [we ' Ie] all under Pes}: c,v no w, II 

t oo k to mean that authority within the Presidential Ad.ministrati on ' s 

PR/ GR circles ha,j entered a ~,yramid-type stage with Pes}:ov at the t 0~1 

\) f the pyramid . 

(U // FOUO) On the material regarding the replacement o f Sergey Ivano~ 

with Anton Vaillo , this was also derivej from a s wel l a s "two 

o ther friends" [>!hich _ left vague and :!idn ' t identif:,rl . The 

part o f the repo rts conne cting Ivanov ' s replacement by Vaina t o the 

fallout over Russia ' s infillence efforts against the US election was , 

acco rding t o _ , his analytical conclusion . " confirmed 

that it had t o be true , " sa i d _ . t:! told him something 

li}:e "[Ivanov ' s jismissal because o f US-elec tion related fal1 0u t] jus t 

haG t o be true" or else she said s omething lite "Of course , it ha s t o 

be that ... " 

(U//FOUO) General Summarizing of 
Prllll ,H" Sutl',nur( (' Debriefings by Orbis 

(U / / FOUO) The interv ie',;er s asl:ed _ about ho;: ':hristopher Steele 

would go ab,) ut debr iefing 11im after his visits , specifically about h,)w 
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Steele asl:ed him about dist i~guishing between what hi s sources have 

told him versus his analytical j u·jgments ._ sai:! 

that Steele \>lould often ask him , ".i:..re yo u sure [about Ttlhat Y0ur S(JUl"Ce 

is telling you ," and sometimes woul ,j repeatedly ~ I ress him about a 

certain report - emphasi:ing 

_ said that he 

during debriefs with Steele . 

".~ re you f'fHl1.U\ Sub .O llf f t' su re? Are you s ure?" 
" 11111"1\ 'Ill! ' ,111fT t' was very careful about caveating 

He w0ul ,j tell Steele if s omething was 11is 

analytical judgment I "As an analyst , I thinl: ... " ) , e~plain hi s confidence 

levels ("It is poss ible vs . lil:ely" o r "It is plausible " ) , and even 

tell Steele ·.hether something ha:! just no t been e:.:>,li c itly ·:lenie :1 I"N ,) 

one has ,jenied it when I ' ve br ,:, ught it u~, . ") . At time s 112 would tell 

Steele that "I ' ve t o ld YOLl '",hat I kno 'tl , " t\lhen pressE·j by Steele t o try 

to get additional information , _ ',lo uld e :':plain that he di j n c, t 

want t o go bac~: t o his friends " 3 o r 4 times" t o try t o get additi c· nal 

material - it would l ook baj and it wou:d raise s uspicions . Steele 

might ask , f o r e~ample , " Do any of your Primary Subsource sources kn ow if 

Ivanov was sac~:ej because o f the US presidential election?" 

IU II FOUO ) Not wanting t o cause suspici ons with friend s and a ssocia tes , 

_ would try an:! cor r ob0 rate the reI=,o tting he 

received in o ther ways . The interv iewers als 0 a s ~:e . j if 

charac teri:e hi s s ources t o Steele (I. told me :..:" 

'i " ) . _ said that "Nas nut al1IJays the case . 

1,o/0ul :l 

IU II FOUO) _ said that hi s -,-e rbal debriefings ·.ith Christo j:,her 

Steele \4€re held at Orbi s ' c. f:i ce , no t at h..:· tels . Steele 1,Jo uld jebrief 

_ solo , and INould take handT/nittEn no te s o f ',ll1a _ ' .. .'as 

telling him . _ remarked that it [Steele tal:in9 handwritten 

notes] was just li~:e I'you [ the FBI intervie~er s] are ] o ing t oday . " 
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(U / / FOUO) Going bac!: over hi s no te-ta):ing , _ s aid that he would 

no t really write detailed no tes about his source meetings . Even on the 

SIA SIA flight , returning fr om trips , he might scratch out a 

few t.ent.at.ive po ints - i . e . " 5 days , 17 meetings " - and maybe S('me 

c rypti c remin,jers . He might al s0 write a text message t o himse lf , but 

he compared it t o preparati on t o a conferenc e panel presentation -- a 

few no tES j o tted o n a no tecard bef ore one llead s t o the panel . He t. o l ,j 

the interviewers that he had destroyed any 0 ~ these sc ribbled no tes . 

(U // FOUO) was as):ed how Steele tasked him - by email , Skype Prll11dl\ ~lItf 'l ltJf( I 

f 'nlll,}f\ SUlh ( wet' o r phone . said it wa s a combination o f the se things , 

_ described the us elec ti on-relatej tasking c ame in three 

',laves : (1) the initial tas):ing abo ut Paul Manafo rt ; (:) the ta s king 

about any compromi s ing materials on Donald Trump ; (3) tas king abo ut 

Sergey Ivanov ' s invo lvement in the US election ; and (~) later on , in 

the fall o f : 01E , 4-5 name s t o ask about ['Nhi c h _ talked about 

earlier , including Carter Page and Mi c hael Cohen]. 

(U / / FOUO )_ 'Nas a s ked if Steele had ever menti oned go ing t o the 

press about with the elec tion-relate,j information . To f'rllll.ll \ '--.ul •• (}lll . t' 

~:n owledge , Steele never went t o the press about thi s material. 

_ never heard Steele vo i ce anj'thing suggesting that this 

material needed t o get into the hands o f t.he ~ , ress . 

(U // FOUO) _ 'Nas asked if he 'tlas tasked ',lith anything el s e 

similar t o what was in the ,j oss ier, but does not appear in the ,j ossier . 

He said no , and repeated that the se ty~,es o f ta s l:ing s [on tIle election 

matter] made him un comfo rtable . Steele pushed _ t o try aIv:i 

either f o llow-up with people o r corroborate the repo rting , but 

_ 't/a s n't able t o do so , Mo reove r , _ added , attemI=,t s at 
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getting corroboration on these s ubjec t s made him uncomfortable - he was 

very nervous about the Russian s finding out about it . 

(U II FOUO) The intervie'lier s later asked _ t o rev ie1/i his 

anno tated version o f the dos sier , asl:ing specifically if tllere were any 

additi onal SOlllce names that had not been covered in the 3-day 

intervie·ll . _ said that there were no other S0urce name s . 

(U II FOUO) _ s ai d that he d id not have any UK-based friends c. r 

soc ial netwo r k connecti ons fr om wh om he collec t s inf o rmation . 

(U//FOUO) More Information about Trips - --
(U//FOUO) _ 2016 

(U II FOUO) The " :: 0 1': trip ,las completely paid by Orbis . 

(U//FOUO) 2016 

(U II FOUO) He remarked that the " trip ',Ia s " o jj , " e :':plaining that , 

upon entry , he was interv iewed mo re pointejly than usual . This was the 

only time it ha s happened . Fo r ab0ut fi\"e minuteS , he ',las peppered ltJith 

questions and statements lil:e , "What exactly a re Y0 U planning t o do 

here? Who are yo u v i s itillg? Your phot o looks 

. All the while , his questioners at entry 

c hec l:ing o n the computer . He reported tllis inci,jent t o Steele . 

4S 
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(U ( ( , OUO) Go ing bad: over the " trip , the interviewers asked if he 

made it up particularly sinCe some o f the material 

. He did 

_ . He went for a "private wEeJ:end" t o 

nothing t o do ,Ii th >lor): . He 

_ said that no ne 

from his weeJ:end trip 

o f 

fle1/1 _ fr um 

the material in the 

that had 

dossier was derived 

(U(( , OUO) The trip was completely paij by Orbis . 

(U//FOUO) _ 2016 

(U ( ( , OUO) What alarmed _ mos t about his :('1" v isit 

wa ~ "ho w perfectly it all went . " No thing bad 11appened . There were a 

number o f events f o r ',.;hich he Has the facilitat o r . He had t o make sure-

r:JEuple \>/Ere where they were suppos e.] t·) be, and he als0 .;lave a 

without a hitch . 

(U ( ( , OUO) During the _ 

presentation t o the delegation 

o ne o f 3-4 speakers 

is the o nly ~'erson .juring this trip whos e name ma .je it 

into the dossier ; however I the material o n _ ll la s not del" i \'e j fr .:"m 

trip . diel not srend any time ring 

collect 
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(U/ / FOUO) Steele debriefed _ after the _ trip . Nothing 

specific was provided ; he and Steele just had "ongoing conversat i ons 'l 

about the general situation . Orbis contributed t o the costs of the 

_ tri[:· , but the trip wa s paid by II . It ',las during this laY0ver 

period in London that _ received the te:·:t cc·nf irming Page ' s 

meeting with Sechin . 

(U//FOUO) _ 2016 

(U/ / FOUO ) _ traveled to the OK at the end ,of _ :('h . The 

trip wa s jointly financed by Orbis anj _ himself . He met 'IJith 

Steele , but most of the rest of Orbi s staff was on a retreat in Dublin . 

He and Steele went out , had a glass o f champagne , and had only general 

conversations . There was no discussion of the election , and no 

discussion of the electi on-related project . 

(UjjFOUO) St. Petersburg & Dossier Report 2016/112 

(U// FOOO) _ e"plained that the overall subject of this report -

Govo rul1 , Alia Bank - has been a t opic he 'dorting 

f or over ten years . It hearkens ith 

USP ER where they would hypo thesi:e about relationsllips 

between Russian corruption and the Alfa Fellowship . 

(O//FOOO) As an aside , 

'Ilherein Source 1 

how Marat Bashir ov , 

another co rrupti on-related story 

that [som~~il~ had t old ilimj about 

0 ~ the Lugans~: ?eople ' s Re~·ublic 

(LPR) and has been sanctioned by the EO , left the LPR after 5-E months 

to become a top lobbyist fOl" Ren ova Gr0u~, - sPecifically Renuva ' s arm 

dealing with heating and power distribution . Bashirov is a Moscow-based 

lobbyist who is working t o get the EO sanctions lifted . 



SENATE-FISA2020-001156

Primary Subsource 

Re : 

• 

(U//FOUO) St. Petersburg-Related Information 

(U / / FOUO) The material r'egar"ding St . Petersbur"g an:! Trump real estate 

deals came frum Source 2 suggestej tllat one person t o 

1001: at regarding compromising material on Trump wa s [Ara s] Agalar0~ , 

a s T/le ll as , o ne o f the biggest real estate developers . 

(U / / FOUO) _ al so tall:ed t v a frien-:l v f hi s "hv [ .~ t;.2\Lr 

ST NOTE : -s-ither had vr ):n':-Iv some- on -?- h1h .J h ad] escortej Trum[:! while 

in St . Petersburg . , who he I:new as a 

_ i~, ',.la s a I,olho lived in MOSCO T/i . She 

l11as about . year s 01, j when she jied , suddenly , la~, t • . 

_ heard the ne'II S fr om her boyfr ien.j , 1,o]ho s ent him a pi c ture 

o f her graves itE . She wr o te st(!ries ~hi ch were o n the c riti c al s iie 

(U//FOUO) Reactions of Friends to the Dossier 

(U // FOUO) _ ha s had friends leach vu t t v him abo ut Trump an-:i 

the dossier . He ' s cons i derej it no rmal j01:ing -
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He simply j o l:es bac}: . None of his friend s or s(lc ial 

netwo rk has brol:en o ff conta c t because o f the election or the lE-lea s e 

o f the dossier . 

(U//FOUO) Friends ' Travel to the United States ; Approachability 

(U// FCUCj Source 3 

(U// FOUO) if he ' d in the 

sa id that he met States Uni t:E' j 

.Juring :I) 1': . She had a tr ip t el a number o f 

destinatio ns in the United States , and she sto~lpej ove r in 

I . She , _ . and 

and t o a restaurant 

went shc'pping 

came out f Cl t her 

He ,j oE-sn i t I:now exactly where s he v isite·j 

while in the United State s , but he thought it wa s 

(U / / FOUO) _ believes that: 

t o the Un ited States - perhaps as 

has s tayed at ho tel s , as well 

(U / / FOUO) _ i s no t sure if 

c an ' t spea k for her . He said that she is 

J . 

received a plausible j ob o ffer , s he might 

had al so traveled ~ ' re~i0usly 

times . He l:nows that 

in the mid-: (II)I)s . She 

place . 

would tall: t o the FBI . He 

that he could carefully inquire abo ut hEr plan s over the coming j ear 

(:01 7 ) and see if there are poss ibilities - he reiterated that he owes 

an _ over the ne:·:t fe llJ ja~· s about the · ... ·ie1Ns ,:; f P.Llssian 

s peal:ers in the Unitej States to~arjs Trump . 

5: 



SENATE-FISA2020-001158

F.e : 

IUIIFOUO) 

(UI nouo) 
years . 

(U I I FOUO) 

lung arter -

Source 4 

Source 1 

Source 5 

Pnmary Subsource 

has not been to the iJnite i States in f-'r(,babl~" II 

Uni to2:i State:? in circa _ - n(,t 

met him in the Unite) States . 

ties "tlith _ , 

(U/ / FOUO) • has occasi l:,nal tla"lel t o Elll"C.I{:·e ani S ,)utheast "L., sia 

-.. She '..J0111,j pr0babl:/ be "tlillin'J te, tra';o2l tel the Unite:1 States ; 

110 wever , that she re~"jrte.jly has '' 502ni,)r 

an:1 _ . Of:-hande:lly , _ c;ai:1 that 

_ has her (.i',!n "k urat0 ::.: " [han:iler] but ',/hen intel"': ie'tiers 

pressed him 0 n this [ .oi nt, 1102 s,:lrtene:i that statement , in ,jicating tllat 

"pr<}jects an image that she has these tYI=·es , :.~ [se,:ret] 

C0nne c ti (dlS " an,j "knc, o" s the [ intellilJen..::e] lin9'>. " He no2'/,;:-1: rer·e.rtej t e· 

lla ,j a \'}: llrat · )~ . '1 

(U//FOUO) Russian Intelligence and Security 

(o // FOUO) Given his language abilit~" ani 11is overseas tra~el as an 

_ stUdent , _ 'lia ~ as}:E-·j i: he had e";er been ar:'l=,r(,ache·:1 b~" 

~ussiall intelligence anj/or secllrit~ · ser~ices ~hen he was a stujent in 

. ' _ sai.) no . The 0nl~" in::ii":ijuals 'Iiith. ·tlf.(,m he has c ,:·ntact 

Wl10 were connectej tv Pussia ' £ int~lligence ani securlt~· ser\'ic~s ~ere 
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(1) his friend , 

stay ou t o f jail 

Fnend 

SIA 

1 111hO menti o ne,j in the 

wh o interacte·j with 

'Nas the 

jPnmary Subsource 

Russia ' s i!lte11ig~;1;e all~ se~urit}· s~rvi;~s , a~d it als o ~~!)tra3i;t~d 

his -:-ar1i;;.r stat~m~!1ts r~garii.1 ':1 :l ... ""I t l'7ally J:IL') !Y111,:-7 if liniti'. ~.;a s 

actually :.)nne~t-:-d t,-~, Russia'.5 i:1t711i}7:1:7 a:1o.' S7,_~ul"i ty s~r\·i ; ~ S . ] 

(U / / FOUO) _ als(, relate ,j a st()r~' rE-qarding 

interacti o n \oJith the FSB . _ :-::ai,] that he r-2membeled this st ,j r:..' 

Source 2 

"right bef ,j re I ta l ~:ed to j 0 U [the FBI] this ~e eJ: . u Circa 

P,.CCOI :ling 

sile.ul ·:l be 

act responsibly . u 

an ,j receivej a lot o f 

t o l·:l him 

the :\(ju r::: at 

',las ':ruest i(·ne:l 

made ab(jut the lea,:ler::hir' 

tb,reatene :1 . 

"he Source 2 

~at c h his mouth an:i 
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(U/ / FOUO) _ brushed aside tbe i:iea .>: being ar:'l='E,aLhe:i by the 

intelligence and Securit~l ser~: i c es a ::: a stu:ient . fie e:,:[>laino2·j that it 

'lias the late tile llni~~:sit~· setting was rath~r la~ . 

lass a~l that o ftEn because his 

(U//FOUO) 1IIIIIIII and Russia ' s Diplomatic Corps 

(U II FOUO) _ 1,las asked if hE ha·j E-iJ:?l: c,,=,'nsi-iere:i a c areer ',iith 

Russia ' s diplomatic c()rps , 

~hich he i,jentifiej a~ 

graiuates were t o l ·j , 

e~ample , that they were slated f o r big things in life an,j would be 

aimed. t u'Jiards uni '/Ersity at . ' (I r 

with future careers in ,ji~.10mac~' , inter~. retati0n I) r " gc.ing 

years later , _ remartej , l:,r ·:,babl'i 1,.~ o f the s tuient s 

are abroad , in places like Loo.jo l1 an.) e':'seldhere , 

(U II FOUO) _ tc,ld the inter';ie'llers that he ne'Jer se ri ,:,us l:/ 

consi·:lered g oing int ,) the -:iiJ,:.lomatic c·:.. q:,s . He ne-:el: teste·:1 f ':' 1" it , an:! 

he never applied f o r an~ o f the maj o r universities listE-·j abc,ve [~hich 

woul ,j fee ·j into ~ussia ' s di~,10matic cor ps] , 

(U//FOUD) Additional 
PmllClry'su h..,OI HCP 

Contacts from IiII 
(U / / FOUO) _ ',las a,s):ed if - besi ie ani (.t her" he l1a" 

mentione,j - if he 11as used o ther 01j frieniships , Sclloolmates , ani 

tn0T,In ass oc iates fl: urn . as sourC02S .j : infc, rmat.i c·n . _ ba':'J.:ei , 

meandere,j in the con7ersatic1n , ani dij no t really a llswer the ,~ue st i .) n . 

The inter~iewers ji ,j n l~t ~, ress him ,)n thi s at this ~'0 int. , 
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Prlnldrv Sl rt),nurcp 
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Contacts in Russia ' s Ministry of Foreign Affairs 

(U II FOUO) _ '.as as):ed ab,out his c,ontacts in the [-[FA . He­

remarked that , over the years , he ha~ c011ectE-d numel" () u::~ business caL :is 

vf MF.u. t>ersonnel , usually through c0ntact at conferences ani e-/ents . !-1t: 

met Yuriy UsI1a}:0v a few times 

is }:no ',II1 te. o [-,erate "inder-,ende:nt " v f La\rr l:,~j . _ als .:, met So21'ge1' 

hislyaJ: at. a couple of events - he recalled c, ne e -,lent that har-'l:·enc-] ·)11 

his 

(U / / FOUO) .i1.fter thin}:ing abc- ut it a bit m,:, re , _ ',.ihLsI=,ereJ ,':·u t 

The intervie:,Jers aske 'J him f':" 1" ajdi ti,:.nal 

:ietail:-:; . remember the inji~Ji.jual ' s surname at 

first . He sai,j that :ro~, an ·:i that he 

"strange c !laracter " t last 'lear . 

t-10SC 0 'IJ . was in P~/GP ~ith the 

career with the MFA . 

_ .jescribed MFJ... j u b as "a ,jeli·.-er~· b O::l" but ad:le:i that 

" ,ii:1 n e, t S E-E-m ( I) be ::jualifie:l f e, r the j(,b 

that he haj [at the !'-1FAJ . " EVentuall~' , _ recalled tha~ 

surname 1tlas Surname 

c . 
" C 
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